
 

 Page 1  
  

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         City Council Agenda 
                                     April 8, 2020  
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   
 
 
Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Regular Council Minutes of March 25, 2020 
B) Regular and Special Bills as presented 

 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 
7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3-minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 
 



 

 Page 2  
  

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 

9) NEW BUSINESS  
A) Action Item – Discussion of Reconsideration of Westwood Pines 
B) Action Item – Steel Casing Agreement with Jacklins 
C) Action Item – Steel Casing Agreement with Arestad 
D) Discussion – Budgeting Goals and Objectives 

 
11) STAFF REPORTS 

A) Public Works Reporting  
B) Police Reporting 
C) Park and Recreation Reporting 
D) City Administrator  

1. COVID-19 report 
 

12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
      
13) COUNCIL REPORTS    

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



 
	 Page	1  	
	 	

 

 
 Rathdrum 

                                         City Council Minutes 
                                       March 25, 2020  
                                              6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:   City Council Chamber 
    8047 W. Main Street         
    Rathdrum, ID  83858 
    (208) 687‐0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME‐PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES‐ Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm 
 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   

 
3) ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT:                         Mayor Holmes.  Councilor Hill, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, 
and Councilor Adams via Zoom video Conference 

      ABSENT:        
STAFF:                               City Administrator Duce. City Clerk Halligan, Police Chief McLean, 

Sergeant Ray, City Planner Siess and City Attorney Herrington via 
Zoom video Conference 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA AND DECLARATION OF CONFLICT, EX‐PARTE CONTACTS 

AND SITE VISITS The declaration and justification of an amendment must be approved by 
motion of the Council.  

 
5) ACTION ITEM: CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Council Minutes of March 11, 2020 



 
	 Page	2  	
	 	

 

B) Special Council Minutes of March 19, 2020 
C) Emergency Council Minutes of March 21, 2020 
D) Regular and Special Bills as presented 
E) Consideration of Corbin Crossing South 4th Addition Final Plat 

 
            City Administrator gave a brief presentation on the consent calendar 

 
Councilor Laws made a MOTION that we approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  
Motion seconded by Councilor Hill. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Laws  

Councilor Hill  
  Councilor Rickard 
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed by all 
 
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 
7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  

(No formal action allowed – 3‐minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 

   Kelly Guzman 
     13900 Lauren Loop #2 
  Rathdrum, ID 
 
   I want to congratulate the Council on this webinar.  This is wonderful.   
 
We also want to offer as much help as we can to the Senior Center.  One thing I would like   
to address is if emails are working thought out the Council such as Mr. Duce?  I know this 
is a hectic time, there are a few things we would like to do and we are not sure which 
outlets to proceed with in terms of helping the community to get to work from home 
during these tough times. 
 
City Administrator Duce state that his email is working. 



 
	 Page	3  	
	 	

 

Ms. Guzman asked if the Council is also receiving emails and voice mails too? 
 
The Mayor and Council stated that they are. 
 

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 

9) NEW BUSINESS 
A) ACTION ITEM: Consideration of the Rathdrum Mountain Host Agreement 

 
            City Administrator gave a brief presentation on the Rathdrum Mountain Host 

Agreement.  It will be the same host that we had last year.  Because of the current 
order from the Governor as of today, we will be postponing this agreement or the date 
that is starts until such time that the stay at home order is lifted.  When we do the 
motion to have the that we authorize Mayor to sign when the order has been lifted. 

 
Councilor Rickard made a MOTION that we allow the Mayor to sign the consideration 
of the Rathdrum Mountain Host Agreement when the time is appropriate.  Motion 
seconded by Councilor Laws. 

      
AYES:  Councilor Rickard 

Councilor Laws 
  Councilor Hill  
  Councilor Adams 
NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:   

 
             Passed by all 
 
11) STAFF REPORTS 

A) Finance Reporting 
B) City Administrator  

1. Potential Budget Hearing Date ‐ August 19th at 6:00 pm 
 
City Administrator Duce gave a brief explanation of the Budget procedure.  

 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 

A) American Legion Proclamation 
B) Vietnam Veterans Proclamation 

        



 
	 Page	4  	
	 	

 

Mayor Holmes stated that we have three proclamations tonight, the American Legion 
Proclamation, Vietnam Veterans Proclamation and the Day of Prayer Proclamation
        

13) COUNCIL REPORTS    
 
14) ADJOURN 

 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:24 pm 
 

 
 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                          Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24‐hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 













City of Rathdrum                                                                                   City Hall (208) 687-0261 

8047-1 W Main Street                                                             Fax         (208) 687-1818 
       Rathdrum, ID 83858-6476                          

 

 

 

MEMO 

To: Mayor and Council 
 
From: Leon Duce 
Date: April 6, 2020 
Subject: Reconsideration of Westwood Pines 

 

The reconsideration process is governed by Idaho State Code and depends on whether the City has 
followed the requirements established by Idaho State Code.  The two important State code sections are 
Idaho Code Section 67-6535 and Idaho Code Section 67-6521.  I will provide the code sections and the 
process that the City has addressed in all portions of the code sections.   

Idaho Code 67-6535 provides the following: 

67-6535.  APPROVAL OR DENIAL OF ANY APPLICATION TO BE BASED UPON EXPRESS 
STANDARDS AND TO BE IN WRITING. (1) The approval or denial of any application required or 
authorized pursuant to this chapter shall be based upon standards and criteria which shall be 
set forth in the comprehensive plan, zoning ordinance or other appropriate ordinance or 
regulation of the city or county. Such approval standards and criteria shall be set forth in 
express terms in land use ordinances in order that permit applicants, interested residents and 
decision makers alike may know the express standards that must be met in order to obtain a 
requested permit or approval. Whenever the nature of any decision standard or criterion 
allows, the decision shall identify aspects of compliance or noncompliance with relevant 
approval standards and criteria in the written decision. 

(2)  The approval or denial of any application required or authorized pursuant to this 
chapter shall be in writing and accompanied by a reasoned statement that explains the criteria 
and standards considered relevant, states the relevant contested facts relied upon, and 
explains the rationale for the decision based on the applicable provisions of the comprehensive 
plan, relevant ordinance and statutory provisions, pertinent constitutional principles and 
factual information contained in the record. 

(a)  Failure to identify the nature of compliance or noncompliance with express approval 
standards or failure to explain compliance or noncompliance with relevant decision criteria 
shall be grounds for invalidation of an approved permit or site-specific authorization, or denial 
of same, on appeal. 



(b)  Any applicant or affected person seeking judicial review of compliance with the provisions 
of this section must first seek reconsideration of the final decision within fourteen (14) days. 
Such written request must identify specific deficiencies in the decision for which 
reconsideration is sought. Upon reconsideration, the decision may be affirmed, reversed or 
modified after compliance with applicable procedural standards. A written decision shall be 
provided to the applicant or affected person within sixty (60) days of receipt of the request for 
reconsideration or the request is deemed denied. A decision shall not be deemed final for 
purposes of judicial review unless the process required in this subsection has been followed. 
The twenty-eight (28) day time frame for seeking judicial review is tolled until the date of the 
written decision regarding reconsideration or the expiration of the sixty (60) day 
reconsideration period, whichever occurs first. 

Idaho Code 67-6535 (1) states that the approval or denial of the application is based off the standards 
within the comprehensive plan, zoning ordinances or other appropriate ordinances or regulations of 
the city. 

Comprehensive Plan – In the Staff report submitted to the City Council at the time of the 
decision on page 3 speaks to the Comprehensive Plan and refers the reader to Exhibit F which 
includes the Comprehensive Plan Analysis Matrix and identifies each of the Goals/Policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan and if the subdivision application addresses each of the items with 
notes.  It is also important to note that Mr. Fox is not challenging the comprehensive plan 
portion of the approval. 

City Code and Standards – In the Staff report submitted to the City Council at the time of the 
decision on page 3 speaks to the Rathdrum City Code and refers the reader to Exhibit E which 
includes the Rathdrum City Code Analysis Matrix and identifies each of the Codes of the 
Rathdrum City Code and if the subdivision application addresses each of the items with notes.  
It is also important to note that Mr. Fox is not challenging the Rathdrum City Code portion of 
the approval. 

Idaho Code 67-6535 (2) states that the approval or denial of the application must be in writing and 
accompanied by a reasoned statement that explains the criteria and standards considered relevant, 
the relevant contested facts, and the rational for the decision.  The City Council approved the 
subdivision and adopted the staff report which includes the reasoned statement that explains the 
criteria and standards, the relevant facts, and the rational for the decision.  It is also important to 
note that Mr. Fox is not challenging the written and reasoned statement that explains the criteria and 
standards portion of the approval. 

It is important to note that in Idaho Code 67-6535 (2)(b) it addresses what is required so that the 
applicant or affected person may seek judicial review.  The applicant or affected person must first 
request reconsideration before they can seek judicial review.  Therefore, Idaho Code 67-6521 
ACTIONS BY AFFECTED PERSONS applies. Idaho Code 67-6521 provides the following: 

67-6521.  ACTIONS BY AFFECTED PERSONS. (1) (a) As used herein, an affected person 
shall mean one having a bona fide interest in real property which may be adversely affected 
by: 

(i)   The approval, denial or failure to act upon an application for a subdivision, variance, 
special use permit and such other similar applications required or authorized pursuant to this 
chapter; 



(ii)  The approval of an ordinance first establishing a zoning district upon annexation or the 
approval or denial of an application to change the zoning district applicable to specific parcels 
or sites pursuant to section 67-6511, Idaho Code; or 

(iii) An approval or denial of an application for conditional rezoning pursuant to section 67-
6511A, Idaho Code. 

(b)  Any affected person may at any time prior to final action on an application required or 
authorized under this chapter, if no hearing has been held on the application, petition the 
commission or governing board in writing to hold a hearing pursuant to section 67-6512, 
Idaho Code; provided however, that if twenty (20) affected persons petition for a hearing, the 
hearing shall be held. 

(c)  After a hearing, the commission or governing board may: 

(i)  Grant or deny an application; or 

(ii) Delay such a decision for a definite period of time for further study or hearing. Each 
commission or governing board shall establish by ordinance or resolution a time period within 
which a recommendation or decision must be made. 

(d)  Every final decision rendered shall provide or be accompanied by notice to the applicant 
regarding the applicant’s right to request a regulatory taking analysis pursuant to section 67-
8003, Idaho Code. An affected person aggrieved by a final decision concerning matters 
identified in section 67-6521(1)(a), Idaho Code, may within twenty-eight (28) days after all 
remedies have been exhausted under local ordinances seek judicial review as provided 
by chapter 52, title 67, Idaho Code. 

(2) (a)  Authority to exercise the regulatory power of zoning in land use planning shall not 
simultaneously displace coexisting eminent domain authority granted under section 14, 
article I, of the constitution of the state of Idaho and chapter 7, title 7, Idaho Code. 

(b)  An affected person claiming "just compensation" for a perceived "taking," the 
basis of the claim being that a final action restricting private property development is 
actually a regulatory action by local government deemed "necessary to complete the 
development of the material resources of the state," or necessary for other public 
uses, may seek a judicial determination of whether the claim comes within defined 
provisions of section 14, article I, of the constitution of the state of Idaho relating to 
eminent domain. Under these circumstances, the affected person is exempt from the 
provisions of subsection (1) of this section and may seek judicial review through an 
inverse condemnation action specifying neglect by local government to provide "just 
compensation" under the provisions of section 14, article I, of the constitution of the 
state of Idaho and chapter 7, title 7, Idaho Code. 

It is important to note that the first paragraph within this code section defines what an affected 
person is, “an affected person shall mean one having a bona fide interest in real property which may 
be adversely affected” and it gives three items that such real property can be affected by: 

1. Approval or denial of the application – Possibly pertains to Mr. Fox 

2. The approval of an ordinance for zoning or annexation – Does not pertain to Mr. Fox 

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6511
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6511A
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6511A
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6512
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH65/SECT67-6521
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH52
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title7/T7CH7
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title7/T7CH7


3. Application of a rezone – Does not pertain to Mr. Fox 

Idaho Code 67-6521 (2)(b) provides for the damage to the affected person and their property in 
claiming “just compensation” or a perceived “taking” from the property owner and how that would 
be ratified if a judicial review was successful. 

Based on Idaho Code 67-6521 it appears that Mr. Fox is not an affected person because his real 
property has not and will not be affected by the action of the City Council in approving the application 
of the Westwood Pines Subdivision. 

Although Mr. Fox likely does not qualify as an affected person the City Council can review the decision 
to verify that the appropriate actions were taken. 

In the review process we can address the concerns of Mr. Fox one at a time. 

1. Did the City allow the local school district to participate in the community planning and 
development process so as to address public school needs and impacts on an ongoing basis? 

a. A request was submitted to the school district in October for comments on the 
subdivision. 

b. As of January 15, (day of the public hearing) no comments were submitted. 

c. On January 15 I went to the school district asking if they had sent a letter regarding 
the Westwood Pines Subdivision.  At this time, they (Brian Wallace and Krissy 
Williams) said that they had prepared comments, but they had decided not to send it 
in. 

d. On January 15, during the Planning and Zoning meeting the Public Hearing was closed.  
New evidence would not be allowed to be included as per state law on a quasi-judicial 
process. 

e. On February 5, Dr. Becky Meyer stated that they had submitted the comments 
regarding and included a copy of the comments with her email.  NOTE: This was the 
first day that we received the comments, 3 weeks after the public hearing. 

f. On February 6, Krissy Williams stated that she was unable to find in her email that the 
comments were submitted to the City. 

g. The school district was asked to participate in the process.  The school district did not 
participate in a timely manner, thus waived their right to participate. 

2. Mr. Fox stated that “As a condition of the Annexation Agreement between the City and the 
developer, dated December 22, 2010, the developer agreed (paragraph 7.3) to provide 
designated bus stop areas out of the lanes of travel within the development.  There does not 
appear to be any such designated areas included in the approved plat.” 

a. The section of the Annexation Agreement reads, “7.3 At the time of development of 
the property, Viking shall provide within the development bus stop areas to assure 
future accessibility by public transit and school busses as required by the city when 
development plans are reviewed.  Such areas shall be designated to provide safe and 



convenient staging areas for riders so as not to conflict with vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic and shall be at locations approved by the City.”  

i. The City will review this section as a development agreement is created and 
signed.  Development will not start until the development agreement is 
approved by the City Council. 

ii. Currently, the City does not require any special circumstances for bus stops 
within our City standards.  There has been nine (9) years from the time of this 
agreement until present to decide if the City wanted these standards.  We 
currently do not have any public transit within the City and most public transit 
does not enter residential subdivisions.  The school district prefers to remain 
in the lane of traffic so that all traffic stops as students board the bus. 

During the City Council meeting the Council may decide to take one of the following actions: 

1. The City Council does not wish to reconsider. 

2. The City Council wishes to schedule a reconsideration of the Westwood Pines Subdivision 
application on April 22, 2020, the date of the next regularly scheduled council meeting. At 
that meeting: 

a. The City Staff will provide evidence that the City has met all the requirements. 

b. Mr. Fox will need to provide evidence that the City has not met all the requirements. 

c. The Applicant will be able to speak towards the evidence that is brought forward from 
both the City and Mr. Fox. 



















AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS - Page 1 of 3 

AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 This Agreement is entered into this ______ day of ___________________, 2020, by and 
between ______________________________________________________________________ 
 (hereinafter referred to as OWNER) being owner of land and premises included in this 
Agreement (the Property) and the City of Rathdrum, a Municipal Corporation of the State of 
Idaho, (referred to as CITY); 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Idaho Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as IDT) will 
be constructing improvements to the Highway 41 corridor; and, 
 
 WHERAS, the CITY and the OWNER recognize the future need for future expansion of 
utilities will be needed in the area; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Department of Transportation (IDT) intends to construct steel 
conduit sleeve casings for future expansion of utilities and related improvements on property 
OWNER owns; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, ITD will, pursuant to another agreement with CITY, provide for the 
construction of project and execute all necessary agreements regarding construction costs for the 
for the conduit sleeves for future expansion of utilities. The CITY, pursuant to said agreement, is 
financially responsible and must reimburse the State 100% of the actual design and construction 
cost of the conduit sleeves for future expansion of utilities.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1.0.   BENEFITED PROPERTY.  This Agreement affects premises in Kootenai 
County, Idaho, as shown on Exhibit “A” which is attached to and incorporated by reference to 
this Agreement. 
 
 2.0 OWNER AGREES AS FOLLOWS:  
 
  2.1  PAYMENT BY OWNER.  OWNER will reimburse the CITY for the 

cost of completing the actual design and construction of the conduit sleeves as set forth in 
Exhibit “B”, attached to and incorporated by this reference, for an estimated total dollar 
amount of [AMOUNT] ($XX,XXX.XX).  

  
  2.2  PUBLIC PURPOSE. OWNER agrees that the conduit sleeves shall only 

be used for a public purpose or public necessity, and shall serve to benefit the community 
as a whole. 

 
2.3 TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP UPON ANNEXATION. OWNER 

agrees to transfer ownership of said conduit sleeves to the CITY at the time of annexation 
into the CITY or at the time of Development within the CITY. 



AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS - Page 2 of 3 

   
 
 3.0 CITY AGREES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  3.1   TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP.  Upon completion of the project, CITY 

agrees to transfer ownership and OWNER agrees to accept ownership of said conduit 
sleeves for future expansion of utilities. 

 
 4.0   TERM.  This Agreement shall remain in effect for ten (10) years or until all 
public improvements described herein are constructed, whichever comes first. 
 
 5.0   RELEASE OF LIABILITY.  The OWNER, by entering into this Agreement, 
waives, holds the CITY harmless, and releases the CITY from all claims arising from the 
establishment, administration and enforcement of this Agreement.  OWNER further agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY, its officers, agents and employees, from and against 
any and all claims, losses, actions, or judgments form third parties for damages arising out of or 
in connection with the acts and/or any performances or activities of CITY, its agents, employees, 
or representatives under this Agreement. 
 
 6.0   BINDING ON HEIRS, ASSIGNS AND PURCHASERS.  This Agreement 
shall be binding upon the heirs, assignees of the parties, and purchasers of the property described 
herein. 
 
 7.0   VENUE AND ATTORNEY FEES.  The parties agree that should any provision 
of this Agreement be litigated in the future, venue for such litigation shall be with the District 
Court for the State of Idaho in and for the County of Kootenai.  The prevailing party to the action 
shall be awarded its reasonable costs and attorney’s fees incurred in such litigation, as 
determined by the discretion of the court. 
 
 8.0   MODIFICATION.  OWNER and the CITY agree that the provisions of this 
Agreement may be modified only upon written request of either party and acceptance of such 
modification by the OWNER and City Council. 
 
 9.0 SEVERABILITY. If any part of this agreement is held unenforceable, the 
remaining portions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 
 
 10.0  NOTICES.  Any notice required or called for by this Agreement shall be deemed 
served upon the party to whom it is sent when delivered by certified or registered United States 
Mail to the following addresses: 
 
DEVELOPER: ____________________ 
   ____________________ 
   ____________________ 
 
CITY:   City of Rathdrum 
   Attn,: Mayor and City Administrator 



AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS - Page 3 of 3 

   8047 W. Main Street 
   Rathdrum, Idaho 83858 
 
 11.0  REPRESENTATION OF AUTHORITY OF PARTIES/SIGNATORIES. 
Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that they are duly authorized and 
have the legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement.  Each party represents and 
warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of 
such party’s obligations hereunder have been duly authorized and that the Agreement is a valid 
and legal agreement binding on such party and enforceable in accordance with its terms 
 
 12.0  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Agreement shall take effect upon execution by the 
OWNER. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the OWNER and the CITY, by and through its Mayor and 
City Clerk, have executed this Agreement this _____ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
 
CITY: 
 
      _______________________________  
      Mayor of the City of Rathdrim 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk 
 
 
OWNER: 
 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
       Name: ______________________________ 
       Title: ______________________________ 
 



AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS - Page 1 of 3 

AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 This Agreement is entered into this ______ day of ___________________, 2020, by and 
between Ragnar Arestad (hereinafter referred to as OWNER) being owner of land and premises 
included in this Agreement (the Property) and the City of Rathdrum, a Municipal Corporation of 
the State of Idaho, (referred to as CITY); 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Idaho Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as IDT) will 
be constructing improvements to the Highway 41 corridor; and, 
 
 WHERAS, the CITY and the OWNER recognize the future need for future expansion of 
utilities will be needed in the area; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Department of Transportation (IDT) intends to construct steel 
conduit sleeve casings for future expansion of utilities and related improvements on property 
OWNER owns; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, ITD will, pursuant to another agreement with CITY, provide for the 
construction of project and execute all necessary agreements regarding construction costs for the 
for the conduit sleeves for future expansion of utilities. The CITY, pursuant to said agreement, is 
financially responsible and must reimburse the State 100% of the actual design and construction 
cost of the conduit sleeves for future expansion of utilities.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1.0.   BENEFITED PROPERTY.  This Agreement affects premises in Kootenai 
County, Idaho, as shown on Exhibit “A” which is attached to and incorporated by reference to 
this Agreement. 
 
 2.0 OWNER AGREES AS FOLLOWS:  
 
  2.1  PAYMENT BY OWNER.  OWNER will reimburse the CITY for the 

cost of completing the actual design and construction of the conduit sleeves as set forth in 
Exhibit “B”, attached to and incorporated by this reference, for an estimated total dollar 
amount of One Hundred Two Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty dollars ($102,750.00).  

  
  2.2  PUBLIC PURPOSE. OWNER agrees that the conduit sleeves shall only 

be used for a public purpose or public necessity, and shall serve to benefit the community 
as a whole. 

   
 3.0 CITY AGREES AS FOLLOWS: 
 



AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS - Page 2 of 3 

  3.1 SERVICE TO PREMISES. CITY agrees to make the conduit sleeves for 
future expansion of utilities available to serve the OWNER’s premises at such time as 
required by the OWNER for development. 

 
3.2  PUBLIC PURPOSE. CITY agrees that the conduit sleeves shall only be 

used for a public purpose or public necessity, and shall serve to benefit the community as 
a whole. 

 
 4.0   TERM.  This Agreement shall remain in effect for ten (10) years or until all 
public improvements described herein are constructed, whichever comes first. 
 
 5.0   RELEASE OF LIABILITY.  The OWNER, by entering into this Agreement, 
waives, holds the CITY harmless, and releases the CITY from all claims arising from the 
establishment, administration and enforcement of this Agreement.  OWNER further agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY, its officers, agents and employees, from and against 
any and all claims, losses, actions, or judgments form third parties for damages arising out of or 
in connection with the acts and/or any performances or activities of CITY, its agents, employees, 
or representatives under this Agreement.  
 
 6.0   BINDING ON HEIRS, ASSIGNS AND PURCHASERS.  This Agreement 
shall be binding upon the heirs, assignees of the parties, and purchasers of the property described 
herein. 
 
 7.0   VENUE AND ATTORNEY FEES.  The parties agree that should any provision 
of this Agreement be litigated in the future, venue for such litigation shall be with the District 
Court for the State of Idaho in and for the County of Kootenai.  The prevailing party to the action 
shall be awarded its reasonable costs and attorney’s fees incurred in such litigation, as 
determined by the discretion of the court. 
 
 8.0   MODIFICATION.  OWNER and the CITY agree that the provisions of this 
Agreement may be modified only upon written request of either party and acceptance of such 
modification by the OWNER and City Council. 
 
 9.0 SEVERABILITY. If any part of this agreement is held unenforceable, the 
remaining portions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 
 
 10.0  NOTICES.  Any notice required or called for by this Agreement shall be deemed 
served upon the party to whom it is sent when delivered by certified or registered United States 
Mail to the following addresses: 
 
OWNER:  Ragnar Arestad 
   ____________________ 
   ____________________ 
 
CITY:   City of Rathdrum 
   Attn,: Mayor and City Administrator 



AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS - Page 3 of 3 

   8047 W. Main Street 
   Rathdrum, Idaho 83858 
 
 11.0  REPRESENTATION OF AUTHORITY OF PARTIES/SIGNATORIES. 
Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that they are duly authorized and 
have the legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement.  Each party represents and 
warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of 
such party’s obligations hereunder have been duly authorized and that the Agreement is a valid 
and legal agreement binding on such party and enforceable in accordance with its terms 
 
 12.0  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Agreement shall take effect upon execution by the 
OWNER. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the OWNER and the CITY, by and through its Mayor and 
City Clerk, have executed this Agreement this _____ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
 
CITY: 
 
      _______________________________  
      Mayor, City of Rathdrum 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk 
 
 
OWNER: 
 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
       Name: ______________________________ 
       Title: ______________________________ 
 


	01a Council Agenda 04-08-20
	05a Draft Council Minutes 03-25-20
	05b March Bills
	09a 2020.04.06 Memo Westwood pines FH edits
	09b 2020.04.04 Draft Rathdrum Casing Agreement Jacklins
	09c 2020.04.04 Draft Rathdrum Casing Agreement Ragnar Arestad

